
School Committee 
Meeting Materials 

Salem&Public&Schools&
Regular&School&&

Commi3ee&Mee5ng&
&

November&16,&2015&
7:30&pm&

&



 
Ms. Deborah Amaral Mr. James M. Fleming 
Mr. Nate Bryant  Mr. Patrick Schultz 
Ms. Rachel Hunt Dr. Brendan Walsh 

 
 

Mayor Kimberley Driscoll, Chair 
 

“Know Your Rights Under the Open Meeting Law, M.G.L. c.30A § 18-25 and City Ordinance 
Sections 2-2028 through 2-2033.” 

 
 

November 12, 2015 
 
REGULAR SCHOOL COMMITTEE MEETING 

 
Notice is hereby given that the Salem School Committee will hold a Regular School 
Committee meeting on Monday, November 16, 2015 at 7:30 p.m. The meeting will be held 
in the School Committee Chambers at Collins Middle School, 29 Highland Avenue, Salem, 
MA. 

 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, November 16, 2015 

 
I. Call of Meeting to Order 
II. Approval of the Agenda 

 
III. Approval of Minutes 

a. Deliberation on the approval of the Minutes of the November 2, 2015 Regular School 
Committee Meeting 

 
IV. Questions and Comments from the Audience 
 
V. Action Items 

 
a. Deliberation on the approval of the Saltonstall School 5/6th grade trip to New York City, June 

13-15, 2016 
 

b. Deliberation on the approval of the Nathaniel Bowditch Farm School Field Trip in Athol Ma, 
February 29-March 2, 2015 

 
c. Deliberation on the approval of the Salem High School Drama Department Trip to London April 

14-20, 2016  
 

d. Deliberation on the approval of participation at School Committee Meetings by Remote 
Participation 

 
e. Deliberation on the approval of the First Reading of the recommendations of the Policy 

Subcommittee for the following policies in the 5000 Section of the Policy Manual 
 

5223 Student Advisory Committee (Tabled November 2, 2015) 
5400 Student Conduct (Tabled October 19, 2015) 
5405 Interrogations and Searches 
5406 Demonstrations and Strikes 
5411 Student Dress 
5805 Use of Hand Held Devices – Name Change 

 
 
 
 



 
 
 

f. Deliberation on the approval of the Second Reading of the recommendations of the Policy 
Subcommittee for the following policies in the 5000 Section of the Policy Manual 

 
5601 Out of State Travel 
5802 Bicycles 
5803 Student Parking 
5807 Athletics and Student Activities Fees  

 
g. Deliberation on the approval of the Third reading of the recommended revision to the 

policies reviewed by the Policy Subcommittee in the 5000 Section of the Policy Manual 
 

5204 Grading and Reports on Academic Progress (Tabled 11/2/15) Name change 
5402 Tobacco Use Policy (Formerly Tobacco Free Schools Policy)   
5403 Alcohol Use by Students Policy 
5404 Drug Use Policy (Formerly Drug Abuse Policy)  
5409 School Bus Conduct 

 
VI. Superintendent Report – Ms. Margarita Ruiz 

 
VII. Presentations and Reports 

Presentation on AP and SAT Score at Salem High School  
 

VIII. Finance Report – Mr. Philip Littlehale, Business Manager 
 

a. Approval of Warrants 
November 5, 2015 in the amount of $441,241.77 
November 12, 2015 in the amount of $259,463.19  

 
b. Budget Transfer Requests 

 
IX. Sub Committee Reports 

 
Buildings and Grounds Subcommittee Policy Subcommittee Finance 
Subcommittee    Curriculum Subcommittee 
Personnel Subcommittee   Committee of the Whole Report 

 
X. School Committee Concerns and Resolutions 

 
a. Discussion on School Committee meeting and SC Retreat Dates for January 2016 

  
XI Next Regular School Committee Meeting – Monday, December 7, 2015 

 
XII. Questions and Comments from the Audience regarding the November 16, 2015 agenda 

 
XIII. Adjourn to Executive Session for the purpose of discussing collective bargaining 

strategies 
 
 
Respectfully submitted by: 

 
  
Eileen M. Sacco, Secretary to the 
Salem School Committee 



Page 1 of 8 
 
 

Salem School Committee 
Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, November 2, 2015 
 

A regular meeting of the Salem School Committee was held on Monday, November 2, 2015 at 7:30 
p.m. in the School Committee Chambers at Collins Middle School, 29 Highland Avenue, Salem, MA.  
 
Members Present: Mayor Kimberley Driscoll, Ms. Deborah Amaral, Mr. Nate Bryant, Mr. James 
Fleming, Ms. Rachel Hunt, Mr. Patrick Schultz, and Dr. Brendan Walsh 
 
Members Absent: None 
 
Others Present: Ms. Margarita Ruiz, Superintendent, Kate Carbone, Assistant Superintendent, 
Margaret Marotta, Assistant Superintendent, Philip Littlehale, School Business Manager, Dr.  Jill 
Conrad, Director of Operations Strategy and Eileen Sacco, Secretary. 
 
Call to Order 
 
Mayor Driscoll called the Regular Meeting of the Salem School Committee to order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
Approval of the Agenda 
 
Mr. Fleming moved to approve the agenda as presented. Dr. Walsh seconded the motion.  The motion 
carried. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
The minutes of the Regular School Committee meeting held on Monday, October 1 , 2015 were 
presented for approval.   
 
Mr. Fleming moved approval.  Dr. Walsh seconded the motion.  The motion carried. 
 
Questions and Comments from the Audience 
 
There were no questions or comments from the audience. 
 
Superintendent’s Report 
 
Student and School Highlights 
 
Ms. Ruiz reported that she attended a celebration of Hispanic Heritage Month at Salem High School 
presented by La Union Latina.  She stated that the students worked hard on their projects and the 
event was a big success. 
 
Ms. Ruiz reported that she participated in a Town Hall Meeting at the Bentley Academy Charter School 
via Skype and noted that she enjoyed the opportunity to talk with students and share her journey with 
them.  She thanked Bentley Academy Principal Justin Vernon for the invitation and the opportunity to 
participate in this successful event. 
 
Ms. Ruiz reported that her listening tour sponsored by the School Advisory Board and the Salem 
Partnership was held on October 29, 2015.  She stated that it was well attended and thanked Mayor 
Driscoll and Salem Teachers Union President Beth Kontos for participating in the event.  She also 
thanked Beth Debski and George Atkins of the Salem Partnership for their help and assistance 
facilitating and publicizing the event.  Ms. Ruiz noted that she will be sharing the results of her 
listening tour with the School Committee at a future meeting. 
 
Ms. Ruiz reported that the New Liberty Charter School of Salem Board of Trustees decided not to 
renew their charter and have begun the process of converting the Charter School to an Innovation 



Page 2 of 8 
 
 

School.  She reported that Principal Jessica Yurwitz submitted a Prospectus to the Superintendent and 
it was reviewed per the process by the Superintendent, the Mayor and the President of the Salem 
Teachers Union, Beth Kontos.  She reported that they voted to approve the Prospectus and that it be 
submitted to DESE.  She reported that Dr. Jill Conrad will make a presentation later this evening on 
the Innovation School process and timeline. 
 
Ms. Ruiz reported that the Pupil Personnel Services Department received a grant in the amount of 
$9,800 from ??  The grant will be used for the purchase of and I Touch and Smartboard. 
 
Ms. Ruiz reported that Pat Williams, the Plan Monitor for the Accelerated Improvement Plan will be 
making a presentation to the School Committee tonight on the AIP Progress Report. 
 
Ms. Ruiz reported that the information that she presented on the Advanced Placement data at Salem 
High School was outdated from two years ago and she will be presenting an additional reported at the 
next meeting. 
 
Ms. Ruiz reported that Dr. Conrad will be making a presentation on the current data on enrollment this 
evening. 
 
Ms. Ruiz reported that tomorrow, November 3, 2015 is an all-day professional development day for 
teachers and there is no school for students.  She also noted that it is also election day and extended 
her best wishes to the candidates running for public office. 
 
Presentations and Reports 
 
AIP Progress Report 
 
Laura Richane of DESE and Pat William the Accelerated Improvement Plan Monitor made a 
presentation on the AIP progress report. 
 
Ms. Richane addressed the School Committee and reported that they have found that the district is 
moving in the right direction.  She also reported that they feel that the Plan Manager will have to 
spend much less time in the district this year due to the confidence that DESE has that the district is 
moving in the right direction. 
 
Ms. Richane also reported that the Plan Monitor Ms. Williams will be doing future reports with 
Superintendent Ruiz. 
 
A copy of the full AIP Progress Report can be found in the meeting materials for the School Committee 
meeting of November 2, 2015 at www.salemk12.org  and www.salem.com.  
 
Presentation on 2015-16 Enrollment in the Salem Public Schools 
 
Dr. Jill Conrad made a presentation on the Salem Public Schools enrollment for the 2015-16 school 
year.  A copy of the presentation can be found in the School Committee Meeting Materials for the 
November 2, 2015 at www.salemk12.org and www.salem.com.  
 
Innovation Planning Process Overview 
 
Dr. Jill Conrad made a presentation on the Innovation Planning Process for the conversion of the New 
Liberty Charter School of Salem to an Innovation School. 
 
Dr. Conrad explained the process as follows: 
 
The law requires several steps in the review process for district consideration of innovation 
school proposals. A brief overview of these steps includes: 

 



Page 3 of 8 
 
 

Step 1:  Applicant Submits an Innovation School Prospectus 
• General concept paper that outlines autonomies anticipated 

 
Step 2:  District conducts Internal Review and 3--!member Screening Committee Vote 

• Majority approval enables applicant to move to next phase of process 
 
Step 3:  Applicant Forms 11--!member Innovation Plan Committee (IPC) (if prospectus approved) 

• Membership defined by law 
• IPC’s are public bodies; all IPC meetings must be publicly noticed 

 
Step 4:  IPC Develops Innovation Plan 

• Recommended: Applicant submits draft plan to district for 
internal review and feedback as well as faculty (for conversion) 
and union (if new), revisions as needed 

 
Step 5: Revise Innovation Plan and Conduct IPC Vote on Final Innovation Plan 

• Majority approval by IPC enables plan to go to faculty 
(conversion) or final union negotiation (new) 

 
Step 6: IPC Submits Final Innovation Plan to 

• Faculty for 5--!days Review & Faculty Vote by Secret Ballot (if conversion) 
o 2/3 of eligible faculty must approve 

• Final District/Union for Negotiations (if new) 
 
Step 7:  IPC Submits Final Innovation Plan to Superintendent 

• Internal review and recommendations to School Committee 
 
Step 8: School Committee Presentation (Meeting #1) and Public Hearing and Vote (Meeting #2) 

• Meeting #1: Applicant presentation and Q&A 
• Meeting #2: A public hearing must be held 
• Meeting #2: Superintendent gives final recommendation and SC votes 

 
The full presentation on the Innovation School process can be found in the School Committee Meeting 
Materials for the November 2, 2015 School Committee meeting at www.salemk12.org or 
www.salem.com.  
 
Mayor Driscoll stated that there should be a member of the School Committee on the Innovation 
Planning Committee. 
 
Mr. Fleming moved to authorize the Mayor to appoint a member of the School Committee to serve on 
the Innovation School Planning Team for the NLCS conversion.  Ms. Hunt seconded the motion.  The 
motion carried. 
 
Dr. Walsh requested at this time that the School Committee take the agenda out of order at this time 
to take up action items as there are some people in attendance at the meeting to discuss them if 
needed. 
 
Mr. Fleming moved to take the agenda out of order at this time to take up Action Items.  Ms. Amaral 
seconded the motion.  The motion carried. 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 4 of 8 
 
 

Action Items 
 

a. Deliberation on the Ratification of the Agreement between the Salem School Committee and 
the Salem Teachers Union relative to the Teachers Cabinet 

 
Mr. Fleming moved to approve the Agreement.  Dr. Walsh seconded the motion.  The motion 
carried. 

 
b. Deliberation on the ratification of the IT Agreement with the Salem School Committee and 

the AFSCME Union 
 

Mr. Fleming moved to approve the Agreement.  Ms. Amaral seconded the motion.  The 
motion carried. 

 
c. Deliberation on the acceptance of a donation from the Salem Children’s Charity to support 

the Positive Behavior System (PBIS) Fund – Molly Robinson 
 

Mr. Bryant moved approval of the donation.  Dr. Walsh seconded the motion and offered a 
friendly amendment to the motion to clarify that the donation is actually from Dennis and 
Patty LaVasseur and not the Salem Children’s Charity.  Mr. Bryant stated that he would 
accept the friendly amendment.  The motion carried. 

 
d. Deliberation on the approval of the request of the Salem High School Class of 1990 to use 

Salem High School on Saturday, November 28, 2015 for their 25th Class Reunion and that 
alcohol be allowed to be served in accordance with MGL CH 272 Section 40A.  

 
Dr. Walsh moved approval of the request.  Mr. Bryant seconded the motion. 
 
Superintendent Ruiz stated that she supports the class reunion but she has concerns about 
alcohol being served on school premises.  She stated that she is concerned that this could be 
precedent setting. 
 
Mayor Driscoll stated that the only way that this can be allowed is by special permit of the 
School Committee.  She also noted that this is an evening event and there are no other 
scheduled events at the high school that evening and there will be no students present at the 
event. 
 
Mr. Fleming reported that the School Committee has granted this on one other occasion and 
the class of 1990 will be using the same service, Northshore Bartending and they are fully 
insured and did a great job with the coalition for the O’Keefe family.   
 
Ms. Amaral stated that whoever is responsible should take the recycling out of the building at 
the end of the event.  Mr. Fleming reported that Northshore Bartenders did all of the cleanup 
and took the recycling with them. 
 
Mayor Driscoll called for a vote on the motion.  The motion carried. 

 
Ms. Hunt requested that the following policies be tabled for further review: 

 
5400 Student Conduct  
5204 Grading and Progress Reports (Tabled 10/19/15) 
 
Dr. Walsh moved to table 5400 Student Conduct and 5204 Grading and Progress Reports  
be tabled this evening.  Mr. Bryant seconded the motion.  The motion carried. 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 5 of 8 
 
 

e. Deliberation on the approval of the First Reading of the recommended by the Policy 
Subcommittee for the following policies in the 5000 Section of the Policy Manual 
 
5601 Out of State Travel 
5802 Bicycles 
5803 Student Parking 
5807 Athletics and Student Activities Fees 
 
Mr. Bryant moved to approve the first reading of the policies presented.  Mr. Fleming 
seconded the motion.  The motion carried. 

 
f. Deliberation on the approval of the Second reading of the recommended revision 

to the policies reviewed by the Policy Subcommittee in the 5000 Section of the 
Policy Manual 

 
5402 Tobacco Use Policy (Formerly Tobacco Free Schools Policy)  
5403 Alcohol Use by Students Policy 
5404 Drug Use Policy (Formerly Drug Abuse Policy)  
5409 School Bus Conduct 
 
Ms. Hunt moved approve of the second reading of the policies presented.  Dr. Walsh 
seconded the motion.  The motion carried. 

 
g. Deliberation on the Third reading of the recommended revisions to the policies 

reviewed by the Policy Subcommittee in the 5000 Section of the Policy Manual: 
 

5210 Homebound Instruction 
5214 Waiver of Graduation Requirements 
5416 Use of Physical Restraint 
 
Mr. Bryant moved approval of the third reading of the policies presented.  Dr. Walsh 
seconded the motion.  The motion carried. 

 
Finance Report  
 
Approval of Warrants 
 
October 8, 2015 in the amount of $177,622.38 
October 15, 2015 in the amount of $251,942.44 
 
Mr. Fleming moved approval of the warrants in the amounts indicated.  Mr. Bryant seconded the 
motion.  The motion carried. 
 
Budget Transfer Requests  
 
FY16 Budget Transfer Request #7 – Teaching and Learning 
 
Mr. Littlehale explained that Assistant Superintendent Kate Carbone is requesting a transfer of $9,885 
from Personnel Line District Wide Teaching to Non Personnel Line District Wide Professional 
Development.  Twenty-Five percent of the coordinator’s salary for 5 months will be covered by the 
Dissemination Grant.  Transferred funds will be used for additional District Wide Professional 
Development.     
 
The transfer request is summarized as follows: 
  



Page 6 of 8 
 
 

 
 
Mr. Fleming moved to approve the budget transfer request.  Ms. Amaral seconded the motion.  The 
motion was approved (7-0). 
 
FY16 Budget Transfer Request #8 – Teaching and Learning 
 
Mr. Littlehale explained that Assistant Superintendent Kate Carbone is requesting a transfer of $5,000 
from Personnel Line Middle School Teaching to Non Personnel Line District Wide Contracted Services.  
These funds will be used to support 2 programs formerly funded by the Salem Education Foundation.  
Please see the attached for a description of the 2 programs.  This transfer will be funded from 
amounts budgeted for ELT at the Collins Middle School.  These funds have become available as the 
district received the ELT grant to cover the ELT expense.     
 
The transfer request is summarized as follows: 
  

 
 
Mr. Fleming moved to approve the budget transfer request.  Ms. Amaral seconded the motion.  The 
motion was approved (7-0). 
 
Subcommittee Reports 
 
Policy Subcommittee 
 
Ms. Hunt reported that the Policy Subcommittee has completed their review of the review of the 5000 
policy series and they will be starting to review the 6000 policy series. 
 
Personnel Subcommittee 
 
Mr. Fleming reported that the Personnel Subcommittee is continuing with negotiations with the Salem 
Teachers Union. 
 
Buildings and Grounds Subcommittee  
 
Mr. Bryant reported that the Buildings and Grounds Subcommittee met on Monday, October 26, 2015.  
The meeting included the Superintendent, Paul L’Heureux, Director of Buildings and Grounds, and Phil 
Littlehale, School Business Manager.  The purpose of the meeting was to get a better understanding of 
what is required to increase the temperature 2 degrees (from 66-68) and the costs associated with 
said increase (ENE Costs $25,000+) and increased energy usage ($200K-$300K annually). 
 
Representatives from ENE Systems, the contracted company, were present to answer questions and 
explain how the system works and experiences they have had with this issue in other school districts.  
Because this is a significant increase the Buildings and Grounds Subcommittee voted to 3-0 to move 
this discussion to a Committee of the Whole Meeting so that all are aware of the actual costs and how 
it will impact students, and staff from a perception versus reality standpoint. 
 
Additionally, Mr. L’Heureux has identified other areas where that have been mechanical failures that 
have impacted heating.  They are: 
 

• The IMC at Salem High School (cost to replace the coils is being investigated) 

Date ORG OBJ Description Amt
10/30/2015 From 13570140 5125 Dist Wide Teaching (9,885)    
10/30/2015 To 13990161 5317 Educational Training 9,885     

Date ORG OBJ Description Amt
10/30/2015 From 13570920 5130 Middle School (5,000)    
10/30/2015 To 13570141 5320 Contracted Services 5,000     



Page 7 of 8 
 
 

• Salem High School (cost being investigated to change air filters, which help in heating the 
building) 

• Bentley School (cost being investigated to change a compressor) 
 
The Buildings and Grounds Subcommittee also asked the Superintendent, in consult with Mr. 
L’Heureux, to create a one-page document that would include tips on how teachers/students can 
maximize the heat in their classrooms.  There are some things that can be done that have an 
immediate impact including making sure that vents are unobstructed. 
 
Mayor Driscoll stated that the School Committee will be scheduling a Committee of the Whole meeting 
to look into this matter further. 
 
School Committee Concerns and Resolutions   
 
Mr. Fleming reported that he met with Latino parents and one of their concerns was that they feel 
unwelcome in their schools.  He suggested that the schools provide a Spanish speaking greeter at the 
front door during events. 
 
Ms. Amaral stated that each school is different and noted that Witchcraft Heights has translators at 
their events. 
 
Ms. Ruiz stated that this issue has been raised at her entry plan meetings as well and stated that a lot 
of the concerns are due to their ability to communicate.  She stated that she will be addressing this in 
her report. 
 
Mr. Fleming reported that he received a complaint from a constituent about the condition of the 
roadways around Salem High School.  He requested that the School Committee get an estimate on the 
cost to resurface the roadways on the Salem High School campus. 
 
Dr. Walsh moved that the Superintendent authorize Mr. L’Heureux to get estimates on the resurfacing 
of the roadways at Salem High School.  Mr. Fleming seconded the motion.  The motion carried. 
 
Dr. Walsh reported that the Parent Child Home Program is celebrating it 50th Anniversary on 
November 13, 2015.  He noted that Alexandra Rodriquez and her son Juan Carrasco are being 
honored at an event in New York City.  He reported that they started in the program in 1993 and 
participated for three years.  Ms. Rodriguez went on to be a home visitor for the program   and Juan 
went through the Salem Public School and graduated from UMass Amherst in 2014. 
 
Dr. Walsh suggested that the order of the agenda be revised to put Action Items at the beginning of 
the School Committee meetings to accommodate those who attend the meetings to present 
information to the School Committee. 
 
Questions and Comments from the Audience Regarding the October 19, 2015 Agenda 
 
There were no questions or comments from the audience. 
 
Adjournment  
 
There being no further business to come before the School Committee this evening, Mr. Fleming 
moved that the School Committee adjourn the meeting.  Ms. Amaral seconded the motion.  The 
motion carried. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:30 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted by: 

 
________________________ 
Eileen M. Sacco, Secretary 
Salem School Committee 



Page 8 of 8 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Meeting Materials and Reports 
Minutes of Regular School Committee Meeting October 19, 2015 
School Committee Agenda November 2, 2015 
Accelerated Improvement Plan Progress Report 
PowerPoint Presentation Enrollment Data 
Report on Innovation School Planning Process 
Budget Transfer Request #FY16-7 
Budget Transfer Request #FY16-8 
Agreement Between Salem School Committee and Salem Teachers Union regarding Teachers 
Cabinet 
Agreement Between Salem School Committee and Salem AFSCME Union regarding IT Department 
Agreement  
Request from Salem High School Class of 1990 to hold 25th Class Reunion at Salem High School  
Policies Reviewed:  
5601 Out of State Travel 
5802 Bicycles 
5803 Student Parking 
5807 Athletics and Student Activities Fees 
5402 Tobacco Use Policy (Formerly Tobacco Free Schools Policy)  
5403 Alcohol Use by Students Policy 
5404 Drug Use Policy (Formerly Drug Abuse Policy)  
5409 School Bus Conduct 
5210 Homebound Instruction 
5214 Waiver of Graduation Requirements 
5416 Use of Physical Restraint 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

















SALEM&PUBLIC&SCHOOLS&&
FIELD&TRIP&FORM&

&
&
&

Information*
&
Name&of&School:&&Nathaniel&Bowditch&School&&
&
Name&of&Organization/Activity:&The&Farm&School/2&days&Overnight&Trip&
&
Contact&Person:&&Maribel&Morales&/Nicole&Daly&
&
Destination:&The&Farm&School,&Athol,&Massachusetts.&&
(Attach&a&detailed&itinerary&to&this&form)&
&
Trip&Dates:&Date&of&Departure:&Group&A&(2/29R3/2)&Group&B&(&&3/2R3/4)&&
2&days&each&group.&&
&
Return&to&Salem&from&(if&different&from&destination&
&
Number&of&Students&Participating:&70&
&
Total&Number&of&Chaperones:&Teachers:4&&&&&&&&Parents:&4&(2&each&night&)&
&
Accommodations*
&
Hotel/&Facility&Name,&Address,&and&Telephone&No.:&&&
&
The&Farm&School&
488&Moore&Hill&Road&
Athol,&MA&01331&
978R249R9944&
&
_________________________________________________________________________________________&
&
Previous&Stays&at&Hotel?&&___________&&&&&How&would&you&rate&this&facility?&________&
&
Cost&of&Rooms:&&_________________&& Based&on&single&occupancy&_____________&
&



& & & & & & Based&on&double&occupancy&&___________&
&
&
&
&
&
&
&
Meals&included?& yes____________& & (If&meals&are&not&included&please&indicate&meal&plans&on&iti&
&
Preferred*Method*of*Transportation*
&
Bus:& LBK&Transportation&&&&&&&&Cost:&$1350_________&

&
Name&of&Bus&Company:&LBK&Transportation&&
&
Address:& 106&Sylvan&Street,&Danvers&MA,&01923&&
&
Telephone&#:&978R774R6551&
&
Airline:&&N/A& & & Cost:&&N/A&
&
Name&of&Airline:&&_______________________________________________________&
&
Address:&&_______________________________________________________________&
&
Telephone#:&____________________________________&
&
Train:**______________&&
*
Name&of&Company:&_____________________________________________________&
&
Address:&_________________________________________________________________&
&
Telephone&#:&&___________________________________&
&
Total*Cost*of*Trip:**$*20*per*student*(prior*to*fundraising)*
*



Fundraising*Planned:*NoneB*School*will*provide*a*hardship*transportation*
scholarship.*
Comments*/*Additional*Information*
The&cost&of&the&stay&at&the&Farm&is&covered&by&a&scholarship&given&to&us&from&the&
farm.&&The&only&cost&to&the&families/students&is&for&the&bus.&Please&see&attached&pages&
for&information&regarding&schedules&while&at&the&farm.&&&



&
Dear Parents of children with food allergies and dietary restrictions, 
  
We’re so excited to have your child visit The Farm School. The kitchen, located in 
our bunkhouse, is an inviting space and a work area for all of our visiting students. 
Your child will wield a broom, pop popcorn on the stovetop, wash dishes, stir 
cookie dough, and set our table. 
  
Our meals are prepared from scratch with produce from the farm -- either straight 
out of the fields, or put-up in our freezer. All meat is from the farm and we bake 
fresh sourdough bread each week! 
  
The Farm School is prepared to meet dietary restrictions and appreciates advanced 
notice of allergies, sensitivities, intolerances and diseases requiring substitutions 
or modifications. We hope your family will see this as an opportunity for your 
child to practice communicating about his/her dietary needs in a safe and loving 
space. 
  
We understand that each child’s needs are different and look forward to working 
with you, and the sending school, to determine the safest plan for your 
student.  My primary goal is to make sure your child is nourished and fueled for 
the amazing work and creative play that happens on our farm every day. 
Please do not hesitate to be in touch with any questions or concerns. 
  
A few things to keep in mind: 
  
The Farm School is not a nut free facility, but we are happy to refrain from 
serving nuts upon school request. 
  
Our kitchen staff has completed the Massachusetts Food Allergen Certification 
training, as required by the Department of Public Health. The Orange Board of 
Health inspects our kitchen annually. 
  
If there is some food item from home that will decrease any anxiety your child 
may be having around mealtime, please feel free to send it along. 
  
Cristina Garica 
Farm School Chef/Teacher 
cristina@farmschool.org 



Dear Parents of children with food allergies and dietary restrictions, 
  
We’re so excited to have your child visit The Farm School. The kitchen, located in 
our bunkhouse, is an inviting space and a work area for all of our visiting students. 
Your child will wield a broom, pop popcorn on the stovetop, wash dishes, stir 
cookie dough, and set our table. 
  
Our meals are prepared from scratch with produce from the farm -- either straight 
out of the fields, or put-up in our freezer. All meat is from the farm and we bake 
fresh sourdough bread each week! 
  
The Farm School is prepared to meet dietary restrictions and appreciates advanced 
notice of allergies, sensitivities, intolerances and diseases requiring substitutions 
or modifications. We hope your family will see this as an opportunity for your 
child to practice communicating about his/her dietary needs in a safe and loving 
space. 
  
We understand that each child’s needs are different and look forward to working 
with you, and the sending school, to determine the safest plan for your 
student.  My primary goal is to make sure your child is nourished and fueled for 
the amazing work and creative play that happens on our farm every day. 
Please do not hesitate to be in touch with any questions or concerns. 
  
A few things to keep in mind: 
  
The Farm School is not a nut free facility, but we are happy to refrain from 
serving nuts upon school request. 
  
Our kitchen staff has completed the Massachusetts Food Allergen Certification 
training, as required by the Department of Public Health. The Orange Board of 
Health inspects our kitchen annually. 
  
If there is some food item from home that will decrease any anxiety your child 
may be having around mealtime, please feel free to send it along. 
  
Cristina Garica 
Farm School Chef/Teacher 
cristina@farmschool.org&



October&29th,&2015&
5th&Grade&Farm&Trip&Curriculum&Connections&
&
The*5th*grade*farm*visit*will*deepen*the*following*essential*understandings*and*
standards*from*the*Salem*Public*Schools*Science*Learning*Framework*for*5th*grade.**

Essential*Understandings*
! Students&will&understand&that&in&most&ecosystems,&energy&is&provided&to&the&

ecosystem&by&the&sun.*
! Students&will&understand&that&energy&is&transferred&within&a&food&web&from&

producers,&consumers,&and&decomposers.*
! Students&will&understand&that&energy&is&needed&for&organisms&to&stay&alive&and&

grow.*
! Students&will&understand&that&organisms&have&characteristics&that&help&them&survive&

in&their&environment.**
Standards*
Plants&have&characteristic&behaviors.&Plants&and&animals&can&survive&harsh&environments&
via&seasonal&behaviors.&*
Organisms&meet&needs&by&using&behaviors&in&response&to&information&from&the&
environment.&Some&behaviors&are&instinctive&and&others&are&learned.&*
Inherited&characteristics&may&change&over&time&as&adaptions&to&changes&in&the&environment&
enable&organisms&to&survive.**
Supporting*Activities*
Students&rotate&throughout&the&first&and&second&day&completing&different&activities&on&the&
farm&including&the&following:*
Rlearning&what&happens&to&crops&and&animals&and&how&the&tasks&on&the&farm&change&during&
the&winter&months*
Rplanting&crops&in&the&greenhouses&located&on&the&farm&to&be&planted&in&the&fields&when&the&
weather&changes*
Rdiscussing&the&cycles&and&adaptations&of&plants&and&how&they&are&grown&throughout&the&
changing&seasons*
R&tapping&maple&trees&to&produce&syrup*
Rfeeding,&grooming,&and&taking&care&of&the&animals&that&live&on&the&farm&year&round*
Rcollecting&eggs&from&the&chicken&coops&and&learning&about&the&life&cycles&of&the&animals*
Rpreparing&meals&using&crops&they&harvested&from&the&farm&*
Rlearning&about&what&types&of&plants&can&survive&during&the&different&seasons,&when&to&plant&
certain&crops&to&be&sure&they&survive&the&changing&weather*

&
&
The*5th*grade*farm*visit*will*review*in*order*to*deepen*the*following*essential*
understandings*and*standards*from*the*Salem*Public*Schools*Science*Learning*
Framework*for*3rd*and*4th*grade.*
*
Essential*Understandings*

! Students&will&understand&that&life&cycles&are&predictable.*
! Students&will&understand&that&life&cycles&include&birth,&growth,&development,&

reproduction,&and&death.&*
! Students&will&understand&that&individuals&of&the&same&species&are&inherited&or&

acquired.*



! Students&will&understand&that&adaptations&help&animals&survive.*
! Students&will&understand&that&organisms&can&share&some&characteristics.**

Standards*
Physical&characteristics&of&plants&and&animals.&*
Plants&and&animals&go&through&predictable&life&cycles&including&birth,&growth,&development,&
reproduction,&and&death.&*
Observed&characteristics&of&plants&and&animals&can&be&fully&inherited&or&they&can&be&affected&
by&the&climate&or&environment.&*
*
Supporting*Activities*
Rfeeding,&grooming,&and&taking&care&of&the&animals&that&live&on&the&farm&year&round*
Rcollecting&eggs&from&the&chicken&coops&and&learning&about&the&life&cycles&of&the&animals*
Rdiscussing&the&cycles&and&adaptations&of&plants&and&how&they&are&grown&throughout&the&
changing&seasons*
Rdiscussing&the&lifestyles&of&the&animals&in&the&current&winter&weather&conditions&and&how&
they&change&in&the&different&seasons*
*
An&additional&benefit&of&this&trip&in&conjunction&with&a&focus&on&the&science&
standards&is&that&students&build&a&sense&of&community&while&working&together&to&
complete&these&tasks&on&the&farm.&&The&program&opens&up&with&a&circle&of&building&
trust&and&learning&to&work&together&cooperatively.&&Students&are&engaged&in&
cooperative&activities&through&the&overnight&experience&from&making&breakfast&
together,&cleaning&up&together,&completing&the&farm&tasks&together,&and&enjoying&
some&free&time&to&explore&the&farm&together.&&It&is&required&that&everyone&is&present&
at&the&table&at&each&meal&and&everything&is&based&on&working&together&and&building&
community.&&This&is&also&a&service&learning&experience&for&the&students&since&
everything&they&do&on&the&farm&creates&something&for&and/or&provides&a&foundations&
for&future&visitors.&&Students&leave&this&trip&with&a&sense&of&accomplishment&that&
their&work&has&made&a&difference&and&a&sense&of&teamwork&that&goes&beyond&the&
classroom.&&
&
Maribel&Morales,&Megan&Martins,&Nicole&Daly,&Katie&Decker&&



Nuts and Bolts for Visiting Staff 
 

The magic that is created at The Farm School relies upon a close collaboration between you, 
the visiting staff, and all those that comprise the Farm School community.  Working with 
you is hugely rewarding for all of us here, and we farm staff members feel a sense of true 
partnership with you right from the start.  We look forward to working alongside you to 
provide a rich and full program for the children that you have brought here.  We will 
therefore be gratefully asking you to help out with a few things… 
 
We count on you to have a relationship with the children you are bringing, and to be largely 
responsible for their emotional and physical wellbeing while they are here.  To this end, 
please be certain to bring up-to-date versions of the medical release forms that your school 
requires for field trips.  Specific to this trip, please find out from parents the following: 
 

1. if a child has any allergies, physical limitations, or other differences that might 
prevent them from working on a farm or around large animals; 

2. if a child has any medications that are necessary for the trip (and please designate a 
member of your staff that will be responsible for holding and administering these 
meds); 

3. if a child has any sleep/nighttime issues such as sleepwalking or frequent trips out of 
bed that would preclude them from sleeping in a top bunk bed. 

 
We ask that at least one visiting staff member in attendance be certified in First Aid/CPR.  If 
this pre-requisite is not possible, please contact us so that arrangements can be made. (All of 
our staff are required to take a course in First Aid/CPR) 
 
There will be an emergency point person from our staff available at all times.  We also ask 
that the visiting staff group establish a point person of their own to clarify communication in 
the event of an emergency.  The visiting point person may likely be the senior staff person, 
or the staff person with the greatest amount of emergency training. (We do not have a nurse 
on site) 
 
Please review the enclosed “Visiting Staff Schedule” and anticipate filling it out at the start of 
your visit.   
 
As you’ll see on the enclosed program schedule, we also rely on visiting staff during 
scheduled free times and during evening/bedtimes.  At these times, Farm School staff will 
not necessarily be present, and we rely on visiting staff to help the students work within the 
community guidelines established in our Opening Circle.  It is advised that a bedtime plan be 
pre-conceived, allowing the students a chance to transition from an evening activity into a 
quiet evening routine.  Once the students are in bed, visiting staff members are responsible 
for them through the nighttime hours, and though separate staff rooms are provided, we 
encourage one visiting staff member to sleep in each bunkroom in order to monitor the 
students’ safety and comfort.   
 
We are so grateful to you for making this trip possible for your students and, indeed, for us.  
We look forward to having a tremendous time!! 
 



Please email or phone Rafe Halsey upon reading this form to confirm that it all 
makes sense to you, and in particular that you are able to get the necessary 
information from parents prior to the trip.  Contact for Rafe Halsey is 
RafeHalsey@gmail.com or 978-249-9944. 



Visiting*Staff*Schedule*
This&schedule&highlights&the&times&during&your&stay&when&you&are&responsible&for&your&students.&&&
Please&see&the&full&schedule&to&understand&how&these&activities&fit&into&the&rest&of&the&program.&

Please&assign&your&staff&to&each&of&these&activities,&write&their&name(s)&in&the&blank&space,&and&bring&
this&schedule&with&you.&

&
____________&
3:30&–&4:15& Free*Time:**All*Visiting*Staff&

This&is&a&wonderful&time&for&your&students&to&explore&the&farm.&
Our&staff&is&not&on&for&this&period,&and&we&ask&that&you&float&through&the&
farm,&making&sure&that&your&students&are&safe&and&engaged.&

&
5:00R6:00& Bunk&Chores:&_______________/Wild&Walk:_________________&
&
6:30&R&7:15& Dinner&Clean&Up:&&__________________&

Please&be&ready&to&finish&your&meal&a&little&early&and&work&with&one&of&our&
staff& to& manage& clean& up.& & Most& likely,& you& will& be& working& with& a& few&
students&to&consolidate&leftovers,&clear&and&wipe&the&tables,&and&sweep&the&
floor.&&You&may&also&be&recruited&to&help&with&dishes&in&the&kitchen.&

& * Free*Time*During*Clean*Up:*Rest*of*Visiting*Staff*
While&one&group&of&students&is&helping&with&clean&up,&the&others&have&free&
time.&&We&ask&that&they&stay&in&or&behind&the&bunkhouse,&and&that&you&keep&
an&eye&on&them.&&
&

7:15&R&8:15& Evening&Activity:&___________________&
We&would&love&for&you&all&to&join&us&for&the&evening&activity,&but&at&least&one&
of& you& participating&will& be& a& great& help& in& keeping& the& students& engaged&
and&focused.&

8:15& & BedBTime:**All*Visiting*Staff&
Your& staff& is& in& charge& of& getting& your& students& to& bed,& and& taking& care& of&
them&through&the&night.&We&ask&that&lights&are&off&in&the&bunkrooms&by&9:30.&
Thank&you&for&handling&this&important&time.&

____________&
6:20&–&& 6:30& Get&students&to&Dining&Room&for&Chores&:&_______________,&________________&
&
6:30&–&7:30& Bunk&Chores:&_______________/Wild&Walk:_________________&
&
7:45&R&8:15& Breakfast& Clean&Up:& _______________Free* Time* During* Clean* Up:& the& rest& of&
Visiting&Staff&

& 11:30&R&12:00& Free*Time:**All*Visiting*Staff&
&
& 12:30&R&1:00& Lunch& Clean& Up:& & ______________,Free* Time* During* Clean* Up:& the& rest& of&

Visiting&Staff&
&
& 1:15&–&2:15& Reflection&/&Class:&________________&
& 3:45&–&5:00& Free*Time:*All*Visiting*Staff&
*
* 5:00&–&6:00& Bunk&Chores:&_______________&/Wild&Walk:_________________&&

&
6:30&R&7:15& Dinner&Clean&Up:&______________________Free*Time*During*Clean*Up:* the&rest&
of&Visiting&Staff&



&
& 7:15&R&8:15& Evening&Activity:&_______________________&
& 8:15& & Bedtime*Routine:**All*Visiting*Staff&

&
____________&
6:20&–&& 6:30& Get&students&to&Dining&Room&for&Chores&:&_______________&
&
6:30&R&7:30& Bunk&Chores:&_________________/Wild&Walk:_________________&
8:00&R&8:45& Packing:&All*Visiting*Staff&

& Having&at& least& two&of& your& staff& keeping& students& focused&on&packing&helps&move&
things&along&so&that&we&can&get&on&to&the&activities&of&the&day!&

& 10:00&–&10:30& Closing*Circle:*Everyone!&
& & 10:30& & Pack&up&bus,&farewell!&



Farm*School*Rules*
At*the*Opening*Circle**
•*The*Number*One*:*Be*Kind.*
•*Respect*the*Animals:*Human*and*Livestock*
•&&5&ways&to&stay&strongR&ample&food,&water,&clothes,&sleep&and&clean&hands&before&
eating&
•&Veggies&&&Dietary&RestrictionsR&see&Chef&
*
On*the*Tour*
Bunkhouse)
•&Wipe&your&shoes&before&you&go&in&the&bunkhouse!
•&Keep&your&voices&down&in&the&bunkhouse&R&go&outside&if&you&need&to&be&loud&
•&No&running&or&roughhousing&in&the&bunkhouse&&
•&Only&use&the&front&door&of&the&bunkhouse,&not&the&back&door&
•&Stay&on&the&first&floor&of&the&bunkhouse&only;&there&are&NO&fire&escapes&upstairs&
•*During*free*time,*you*must*be*able*to*see*the*bunkhouse;*you*must*have*an*
adult*with*you*to*go*further*
)
Bunkrooms)
•&Leave&your&shoes&just&outside&your&bunkroom&
•&Keep&your&stuff&organized&in&the&bunkrooms&
•&Bunkrooms&are&safe&areasR&boys&on&boys’&side,&girls&on&girls’R&NO&mixing&(includes&
talking&through&windows)&&
•&If&you&hear&the&fire&alarm,&go&to&the&front&of&the&cow&barn&(only&time&you&can&use&
the&emergency&exits)&
)
Farmyard)
•&When&you&hear&the&bells,&come&to&the&front&of&the&bunkhouse*
•&When&you&are&around&the&animals,&always&be&quiet&and&calm&
•*YOU*NEED*AN*ADULT*TO*GO*TO*HAY*BARN:*no*climbing*on*hay*and*no*
running*
•&Do&not&touch&the&electric&fence&
•&Close&any&gate&that&you&open&
•*Animal*areas*are*always*changing,*so*check*barn*white*board*for*which*
areas*are*okay*to*go*into*alone**
•*The*steer,*horse*and*pig*areas*are*ALWAYS*off*limits**
)
Garden/Sugar)Shack)
•&You&need&to&have&an&adult&to&go&in&the&greenhouse&
•&You&need&farmer&supervision&to&saw&or&split&logs&at&the&Sugar&Shack&
)
Kitchen)
•&Ask&Cook&before&going&in&the&kitchen&
•&You&MUST&wear&closedRtoe&shoes&in&the&kitchen&
•&Do&not&go&in&the&pantry&unless&with&a&farmer&or&told&to&by&a&staff&member&



*
Lunch*
•&Food&you&have&brought&from&home&goes&in&a&crate,&and&you&get&it&when&you&leave&
•*No*food,*gum,*candy,*or*drinks*in*the*bunkrooms*
•&Bucket&Breakdown&(Recycling,&Compost&and&Trash)&
•&Please&clean&up&after&yourself,&esp.&this&first&lunch&THANK&YOU!!&
*
Dinner*
•&When&we&eat,&we&eat&together;&at&mealtime,&wait&for&announcements&to&start&and&
end&the&meal&&
&
&























































 
 

STUDENTS AND INSTRUCTION 5000 
 
INSTRUCTIONAL PROGRAM 5200 

 
STUDENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE 5223 

 
The School Committee shall meet at least once every other month during the school year 
with a Student Advisory Committee to consist of at least 5 members composed of 
students elected by the student body of Salem High School.  The leadership of the school 
shall make every effort to recruit  students who are representatives of the diversity of the 
school to seek election to this body. 
 
 
The Student Advisory Committee shall elect a chairperson to facilitate its own meetings 
and to represent the committee as an ex-officio member of the Salem Public Schools 
School Committee.  The Student Advisory Committee chair will participate in regular 
School Committee members as a non-voting member.  S/he will not have the right to 
attend Executive Sessions of the School Committee. 

 
 
Legal Reference:  MGL 71:38M 
 
First Reading: November 16, 2015 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Margarita Ruiz� 10/27/2015 7:34 PM
Deleted:  a representative population of
Margarita Ruiz� 10/27/2015 7:33 PM
Deleted: .
Margarita Ruiz� 10/27/2015 7:34 PM
Deleted: 



STUDENTS AND INSTRUCTION 5000  
 
STUDENT CONDUCT 5400  
 
All schools will prepare and distribute a student handbook that includes the mission and vision of the 
school as well as expectations for conduct and general procedures. School handbooks will be developed by 
school leaders, in consultation with School Councils, and approved by the Superintendent.  School leaders 
and councils will review handbooks annually to consider changes and to ensure compliance with School 
Committee policy, state and federal laws.  
 
Legal Reference: MGL 71:37H 
 
Tabled: November 2, 2015 
 
First Reading: November 16, 2015 
!



STUDENTS AND INSTRUCTION 5000 
!
STUDENT CONDUCT 5400 
!
STUDENT DEMONSTRATONS AND STRIKES 5406 
!
Any student who willingly takes part in an unauthorized assembly, sit-in, protest meeting, 
etc., which is disruptive of the educational process, shall be subject to disciplinary action 
up to and including suspension. 
 
First Reading: November 16, 2015 
 

!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

Rachel Hunt� 11/9/2015 6:01 PM
Deleted: .



STUDENTS'AND'INSTRUCTION''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''5000''
STUDENT'CONDUCT''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''5400'
STUDENT'DRESS'''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''5411''
'
The'Salem'Public'Schools'believe'that'student'dress'should'not'distract'from'the'learning'process'and'
should'be'congruent'with'the'district’s'health'and'safety'requirements.''Each'school'will'be'responsible'
for'establishing'an'acceptable'dress'code'or'school'uniform.''Decisions'regarding'an'acceptable'dress'
code'will'be'made'by'the'respective'school'leadership'team'in'consult'with'the'superintendent.'
'
First'Reading:'November'16,'2015'
'
'

Rachel Hunt� 11/9/2015 6:20 PM
Deleted: ,'including'the'implementation'of'a

Rachel Hunt� 11/9/2015 6:20 PM
Deleted: on



Students(and(Instruction((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((5000(

Miscellaneous(Items((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((5800((

Use(of(Handheld(Devices(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((5805(

Handheld(devices(may(be(used(during(school(hours(to(enhance(the(learning(process.((Handheld(devices(
include,(but(are(not(limited(to,(mobile(phones,(tablets,(and(laptops.((Salem(Public(Schools(considers(the(
usage(of(such(devices(during(school(hours(as(a(privilege(and(not(a(right.((To(that(end,(the(rules(and(
regulations(on(proper(use(of(handheld(devices(will(be(the(responsibility(of(the(leadership(team(of(the(
respective(school(and(will(be(communicated(in(the(student(handbook.(((((

(

First(Reading(–(November(16,(2015(

(

(

(

Nate Bryant� 10/20/2015 4:59 PM
Formatted: Font color: Red
Nate Bryant� 10/20/2015 4:59 PM
Formatted: Font color: Red
Rachel Hunt� 11/9/2015 6:24 PM
Deleted: The(use(of(h

Rachel Hunt� 11/9/2015 6:23 PM
Deleted: may(be(appropriate(when(its(purpose(
supports(and

Rachel Hunt� 11/9/2015 6:24 PM
Deleted: s

Nate Bryant� 10/20/2015 4:20 PM
Deleted: mobile(devices((are(prohibited(during(
school(hours.(Cellular(phones(and(other(electronic(
devices(may(be(used(on(school(property(before(and(
after(regular(school(hours. ... [1]



STUDENTS'AND'INSTRUCTION'''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''5000'

'INTERSCHOLASTIC'ATHLETICS'''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''5600''

OUT2OF2STATE'TRAVEL'''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''5601'

The'superintendent'authorizes'athletic'teams'and/or'individual'athletes'to'travel'out2of2state'for'the'
purpose'of'regularly'scheduled'contests,'scrimmages,'or'regional'events.'The'athletic'director'and/or'
coach'are'responsible'for'coordinating''such'events.'The'principal'must'approve'all'out2of2state'travel'
for'athletic'purposes.'

'

First'Reading:'November'2,'2015'

Nate Bryant� 8/21/2015 3:47 PM
Deleted:'Salem'School'Committee

Nate Bryant� 8/21/2015 3:48 PM
Deleted:'is

Nate Bryant� 8/21/2015 3:47 PM
Deleted:'scheduling



STUDENTS'AND'INSTRUCTION'''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''5000''

HEALTH'AND'SAFETY'''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''5700''

Alternative'Transportation'to'School'''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''5714'

If'a'student'rides'a'bicycle,'skateboard,'or'other'alternative'forms'of'transportation'to'school,'he'or'she'

should'park'and'lock'it'securely.'The'school'department'does'not'take'responsibility'for'items'that'are'

lost'or'damaged'while'on'school'property.'For'safety'reasons,'some'schools'may'prohibit'alternative'

transportation'on'school'property.''

For'additional'information,'please'refer'to'the''Student'Handbook.''

'

'

First'Reading'–'November'2,'2015'

Nate Bryant� 8/21/2015 4:22 PM
Deleted: STUDENTS'AND'INSTRUCTION''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''
5000' ... [1]

Nate Bryant� 8/21/2015 4:22 PM
Deleted: BICYCLES

Nate Bryant� 8/21/2015 4:28 PM
Comment [1]: Not'crazy'about'the'title'but'I’m'

drawing'a'blank.'

Nate Bryant� 8/21/2015 4:23 PM
Deleted: '

Nate Bryant� 8/21/2015 4:24 PM
Deleted: 802

Nate Bryant� 8/21/2015 4:26 PM
Deleted: '

Nate Bryant� 8/21/2015 4:26 PM
Deleted: bicycles'

Nate Bryant� 8/21/2015 4:31 PM
Deleted: riding'

Nate Bryant� 8/21/2015 4:31 PM
Deleted: bicycles'to'school.

Nate Bryant� 8/21/2015 4:27 PM
Deleted: See

Nate Bryant� 8/21/2015 4:27 PM
Deleted: Approved:'1/'9/06



STUDENTS'AND'INSTRUCTION'''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''5000'

MISCELLANEOUS'ITEMS'''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''5800'

STUDENT'PARKING''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''5801'

Licensed'students'with'registered'vehicles'may'park'in'student'parking'areas'during'regular'school'
hours.'A'parking'permit'may'be'required'and'a'fee'may'be'charged'for'the'permit.'This'fee,'if'any,'will'
be'set'by'the'Salem'School'Committee'and'reviewed'annually.''

For'additional''information,'please'refer'to'the'student'handbook.'

'

First'Reading:''November'2,'2015'

Nate Bryant� 8/21/2015 4:37 PM
Deleted:'HEALTH'AND'SAFETY'''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''
5700 ...'[1]

Nate Bryant� 8/21/2015 4:40 PM
Deleted:'3

Nate Bryant� 8/21/2015 4:38 PM
Deleted:''

Nate Bryant� 8/21/2015 4:40 PM
Deleted:''regularly.

Nate Bryant� 8/21/2015 4:40 PM
Deleted:'pertinent



STUDENTS AND INSTRUCTION       5000                                                                                                             

MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS                             5800                                                                                                                

ATHLETICS AND STUDENT ACTIVITIES FEES            5807   

                                                                                            

All students participating in athletics and student activities may be charged a participation fee.  
Students showing financial hardship, as deemed by the athletic director or student activities 
director, will be excused from paying these fees or will pay a reduced rate.  These fees, if any, 
will be set by the Salem School Committee and reviewed annually.  

!

First Reading; November 2, 2015 



STUDENTS AND INSTRUCTION      5000  

INSTRUCTIONAL PROGRAM      5200  

GRADING AND REPORTS ON ACADEMIC PROGRESS  
5204  

The Salem School Committee recognizes the responsibility of the 
district and schools to provide regular reports of student progress. 
The School Committee further recognizes that these reports are a 
vital form of communication between the schools 
and parents/guardians. The School Committee also believes that 
reports must be based upon student progress toward learning goals.  

All schools will issue reports to parents/guardians depicting 
student achievement relative to established and communicated 
learning standards at a minimum of three times annually with the 
first being issued no later than mid December.  

Schools will hold regularly scheduled conferences in December 
and in March after report of progress (i.e., report cards) have been 
issued and distributed to parents/guardians.  

In addition to the established, regular reports, parents/guardians 
will be notified if a student's performance requires discussion 
and/or action outside of the established schedule.  
Parents/guardians may also request meetings on progress with the 
school. 

Major changes in the reporting system shall be preceded by a 
cooperative study and evaluation by representative teachers, school 
leaders, parents/guardians, and the Superintendent or his/her 
designee, who will submit the proposal to the School Committee 
for consideration and approval.  

First&Reading:&September&21,2015&&&
Second&Reading:&October&5,&2015&&

Rachel Hunt� 10/27/2015 9:12 AM
Deleted: PROGRESS 

Rachel Hunt� 10/27/2015 9:13 AM
Deleted: Each student will receive progress 
reports during the school year, as described in 
the school’s student handbook. This report will 
contain information to inform 
parents/guardians about their child’s 
performance in school. ... [1]

Rachel Hunt� 10/27/2015 9:14 AM
Deleted: A…reports to parents/guardians ... [2]

Rachel Hunt� 10/27/2015 9:47 AM
Deleted: The …chools will hold regularly ... [3]

Rachel Hunt� 10/27/2015 9:48 AM
Deleted: periodic …egular reports, ... [4]

Rachel Hunt� 10/27/2015 9:49 AM
Deleted: principals/heads of upper ... [5]



&&
Third&Reading:&November&16,&2015 

&
Eileen Sacco� 11/10/2015 12:39 AM
Deleted: :&October&19,&2015&&



STUDENTS AND INSTRUCTION  

STUDENT CONDUCT 5400 

TOBACCO USE POLICY 5402 

The School Committee does not tolerate use, service, possession or consumption of 
tobacco.  Smoking, chewing, vaping or other use of tobacco products (including e-
cigarettes and any other tobacco-like substance prohibited by the school) by staff, 
students, and members of the public shall be banned from all District buildings.  All 
forms of tobacco use shall be prohibited on all District property.  In addition, tobacco use 
by students is banned at all school-sponsored functions, whether the function takes place 
on or away from school property. Students and/or their guests who violate this policy 
shall be subject to consequences outlined in the student handbook and in accordance with 
state and federal law. 

LEGAL REF:  M.G.L 71:37H 

CROSS REF.:  ADC, Smoking on School Premises 

GBED, Tobacco Use on School Property by Staff Members 

Approved: 1/ 3/05 Approved: 1/ 9/06  

 

First Reading: November 16, 2015 

 

!

Rachel Hunt� 10/5/2015 12:14 PM
Deleted: FREE SCHOOLS
Rachel Hunt� 10/5/2015 12:17 PM
Deleted: ... [1]
Rachel Hunt� 10/5/2015 12:15 PM
Formatted: Font:Times

Rachel Hunt� 10/5/2015 12:15 PM
Formatted: Font:Times

Rachel Hunt� 10/5/2015 12:15 PM
Formatted: Font:Times

Rachel Hunt� 10/5/2015 12:17 PM
Formatted: Font:Times

Rachel Hunt� 10/5/2015 12:17 PM
Formatted: Font:12 pt

Rachel Hunt� 10/5/2015 12:17 PM
Formatted: Font:12 pt

Rachel Hunt� 10/5/2015 12:07 PM
Deleted: ANNUAL REVIEW 5400 5402 ... [2]
Rachel Hunt� 10/5/2015 12:14 PM
Formatted: legalrefs-indent, Indent: Left: 
1.1", Space After:  0 pt, Widow/Orphan
control, Adjust space between Latin and
Asian text, Adjust space between Asian
text and numbers

Rachel Hunt� 10/5/2015 12:14 PM
Formatted: Font:13.5 pt, Font color: Black

Rachel Hunt� 10/5/2015 12:07 PM
Deleted: Elementary and middle school 
student violations of this policy shall involve 
the following steps: ... [3]
Unknown
Formatted: Font:(Default) Times



STUDENTS AND INSTRUCTION 5000 
 
STUDENT CONDUCT 5400 
 
DRUG USE (Formerly Drug Abuse Policy)  5404 
 

PROPOSED REVISION: 
 

The School Committee does not tolerate use, service, possession, or consumption of any drugs 
at any school or at any school function whether the function takes place on or away from school 
property. Students and/or their guests who violate this policy shall be subject to consequences 
outlined in the student handbook and in accordance with state and federal law.  

For pertinent information, refer to the appropriate student handbook. Legal Reference: MGL 
71:37H  

EXISTING POLICY: 

The School Committee does not tolerate use, service, possession, or consumption of any 
drugs at any school or at any school function whether the function takes place on or away 
from school property.  Students and/or their guests who violate this policy shall be subject 
to penalties up to and including expulsion as well as criminal prosecution spelled out in 
the student handbook and by state and federal law. 
 
Refer to the Memorandum of Understanding between the Salem Public Schools and the 
Salem Police Department in the Procedures Manual. 
 
For pertinent information, refer to the appropriate student handbook. 
 
Legal Reference:  MGL 71:37H 
 
First Reading:  October 19, 2015 
Second Reading: November 2, 2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



STUDENTS AND INSTRUCTION 5000 
 
STUDENT CONDUCT 5400 
 
SCHOOL BUS 5409 
 

PROPOSED REVISION: 

The School Committee and its staff share with students and their families the responsibility for 
student safety during transportation to and from school.  The authority for enforcing School 
Committee requirements of student conduct on buses will rest with the Principal. 

To ensure the safety of all students who ride in buses, it may occasionally be necessary to 
revoke the privilege of transportation from a student who abuses this privilege.  
Parents/guardians of children whose behavior and misconduct on school buses endangers the 
health, safety, and welfare of other riders will be notified that their children face the loss of 
transportation privileges in accordance with regulations approved by the School Committee. 

First Reading of Revision: October 19, 2015 

 
Existing Policy Language: 
 
RESPONSIBILITIES WHILE RIDING 
 
While riding on the bus or waiting at the bus stop, students are expected to behave and 
not do anything that might be dangerous to themselves or others. ALL SCHOOL 
RULES ARE IN EFFECT AT THE BUS STOP AND ON THE BUS.  Everyone is 
expected to observe the safety rules outlined in their student handbook. 
 
The Salem School Committee adheres to the state law requiring K-6 students living more 
than2 miles from school to receive school bus transportation. DISCIPLINE 
The bus driver is responsible, among other activities, for the supervision of pupil bus 
behavior. The principal must assure safe, prompt loading and unloading of buses. In 
addition, the principal is responsible for ensuring disciplinary action for any students who 
violate the rules of acceptable bus behavior. 
 
TRANSPORATION TO AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAMS 
 
The Salem Public Schools require that both public and private transporters arrive at the 
schools at the designated dismissal times. 
 
Providers of transportation to private after school programs must have the transportation 
vehicles at the schools by the scheduled dismissal time. If the private transportation 
vehicle is unavailable at dismissal time, the child shall be required to use the publicly 
contracted transportation system to return home. 
 
 
 
 
 



Children who are required to walk to or from school are expected to walk directly home if 
the private transportation to the after school program has not arrived by dismissal time. 
 
The Salem Public Schools cannot accept the responsibility of supervising children who 
wait for private transportation to day care or after school programs beyond the 
contractual work day for teachers. 
 
For pertinent information, refer to the appropriate student handbooks. 
 
First Reading:  October 19, 2015 
Second Reading: November 2, 2015 



Version #2 
 

 
Philip Littlehale 
Business Manager 

The Salem Public Schools 
City of Salem    

 
29 Highland Avenue • Salem, Massachusetts 01970  Tel. (978) 740-1222   Fax (978) 740-1152                                                                                    

              E-Mail: philiplittlehale@salemk12.org 
  

Memo 
 
To: Salem School Committee     
 
From: Philip A. Littlehale     
 
Date:  November 5, 2015  
 
Re:   FY16 Budget Transfer Request (10) – Collins Middle School  
 
 
Collins Middle School Principal Glenn Burns is requesting a transfer of $5,000 from Personnel Line Athletics 
to Non Personnel Athletics Contracted Services.  The transfer is requested to move funds to the appropriate line 
for the needed expenses. 
 
The transfer request is summarized as follows: 
  

 
 
I recommend approval of the transfer. 
 
Thank You. 

Date ORG OBJ Description Amt
11/5/2015 From 13450920 5116 Athletics (5,000)    
11/5/2015 To 13450921 5860 Equipment 5,000     


